Agenda - Climate Change, Environment and Rural

Affairs Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 4 - Ty Hywel Marc Wyn Jones

Meeting date: Thursday, 20 July 2017 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.15 0300 200 6363

SeneddCCERA@assembly.wales

1  Private pre-meeting
(09.15 - 09.30)

2 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest

3 General scrutiny of the Cabinet Secretary for Environment and

Rural Affairs
(09.30 - 10.45) (Pages 1 - 23)

Lesley Griffiths AM, Cabinet Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs

Attached Documents:
Research Brief

Written evidence from Welsh Government

,Ff Cynulliad National
/’ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



4 Paper to note
(10.45 - 10.50)

Letter from the Llywydd regarding the implementation of the Wales Act 2017
(Pages 24 - 26)

Attached Documents:

Letter from the Llywydd

Letter from Natural Resources Wales regarding Marine Protect Areas
(Pages 27 - 35)

Attached Documents:

Letter from Natural Resources Wales

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the

public from the meeting for the remaining items of this meeting.

6 Discussion of response to letter from the Llywydd regarding the
implementation of the Wales Act 2017
(10.50 - 11.00) (Pages 36 - 39)

Attached Documents:

Legal Brief

Break (11.00 - 11.10)

7 Inquiry into forestry and woodland policy - discussion of draft

report
(11.10 - 12.30)



Lunch (12.30 - 13.00)

8 Presentation on the implications of the Repeal Bill for the

Committee’s Forward Work Programme
(13.00 - 13.45)

9 Discussion of Committee's Forward Work Programme
(13.45 - 14.00) (Pages 40 - 43)

Attached Documents:

Forward Work Programme



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 3

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Cabinet Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs (ERA)
Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee

1.

This paper sets out some of my priorities and recent actions ahead of my meeting
with the Committee on 20 July.

Exit from the European Union (EU)

2.

Exit from the EU continues to be at the very top of my agenda and is an issue to
which | am giving significant attention. Working together with our partners, we are
seeking to ensure we get the very best outcome for our farming, land
management, food and environment sectors. | was pleased to respond to the
Committee’s report on the future of land management in Wales recently and set
out a number of my priorities.

Our ERA Brexit Stakeholder Roundtable continues to be an important force and a
vital source of insight and expertise. This early and ongoing engagement with key
partners has been an absolute priority in working to identify the full implications,
challenges and opportunities from exiting the EU.

At the March Roundtable we agreed to set up seven Working Groups to enable
the Roundtable to become more involved with the more detailed aspects of EU
Transition arrangements. These groups will take forward a more detailed analysis
in the areas of land management, legislation and regulation, evidence and
scenarios, trade and supply chains, air and climate, seas and coast and people
and communities. All these groups have held at least one meeting and are in the
process of agreeing future work plans.

| have been actively participating in Ministerial Quadrilateral meetings with my
counterparts from the other Devolved Administrations and Defra. The
engagement to date with Defra is particularly welcome given the importance of
the Environment and Rural Affairs portfolio to Wales, but progress has not been
as fast as | would wish, especially in the context of the ticking clock for the EU
negotiations. Progress has been further delayed by the UK General Election. The
UK Ministers postponed the June and July Quadrilateral Meetings where we were
due to discuss future policy options.

It is of absolute importance that these discussions now move on quickly to
establish arrangements for post-EU Exit and we have been emphasising this at
every level available to us.

Agriculture has been fully devolved for nearly two decades and | am clear and
resolute it must stay that way. | press the point at every opportunity that Wales
must be able to put in place policies that respond to our unique context and build
on our strengths. There is a need for UK frameworks where we have areas of
commonality, but it is essential these frameworks are collectively agreed and
Wales has an equal say in how they are shaped.

In terms of the future post-Brexit, | have consulted widely on the Natural
Resources Policy and | am grateful for the input that so many of our stakeholders
have provided. The consultation closed in February and | have been considering
the feedback and building on the opportunities and challenges identified in the

Pack Page 14



State of Natural Resources Report.

9. | have taken the decision to delay temporarily publication of the Natural
Resources Policy to provide more time to be able to analyse fully the significant
number of responses received to our recent consultation. This is especially
important given the profound implications of the UK’s exit from the EU to the
policy, legislation and funding frameworks for our natural resources in Wales and
our key sectors that utilise them.

10.The Natural Resources Policy is not just about the role of Welsh Government or
the wider public sector, it recognises that Wales as a whole benefits from our
natural resources. We face serious and difficult challenges with respect to climate
change and evidence showing that biodiversity continues to decline.

Legislative Framework

11.0n 21 June, | launched a consultation called Taking Forward Wales’ Sustainable
Management of Natural Resources for 12 weeks to consult on proposals which
seek to further deliver our commitment to manage our natural resources more
sustainably to deliver lasting economic, social and cultural, as well as
environmental benefits, to ensure the continued prosperity of Wales.

12. A significant amount of work is ongoing to consider the implications of EU Exit on
animal health and welfare. There is now agreement across the UK to use the
next two years to influence emerging EU tertiary legislation. Our objective must
be to ensure we have a legislative framework in place which supports trade and
the need to respond to animal disease outbreaks quickly and effectively. These
can have wide and costly consequences for animal and public health, the
economy and the environment.

13.There is a need to simplify and consolidate Welsh planning legislation. It is
complex in nature and currently spread across a number of Acts. | am pleased
the Law Commission for England and Wales is focusing this project on delivering
consolidation and simplification of planning legislation in Wales. The Law
Commission published a scoping paper in June last year with a more detailed
consultation paper following this autumn. This will result in a report setting out
their conclusions for the Welsh Ministers to consider. This will provide the
evidence base to start the process of consolidating planning law in Wales.

Prosperous and secure

14.My aim is to focus on ‘win-win’ actions that deliver economic, social and
environmental improvements. This approach is increasingly commonplace in the
business sector where many of the most successful multinational companies
have a ‘triple bottom line’ or ‘people, planet, profit’ approach.

15. My decarbonisation focus is on setting up an emission reduction framework. The
programme is on schedule for delivery within the legislative timescales.

16. A Ministerial Task and Finish Group has been set up recognising the cross
Government responsibility and have already met. We have received advice from
the UK Committee on Climate Change (UKCCC) and will shortly respond
outlining our policy approach to the Welsh Net Emission Account.

Pack Page 15



17.In setting our targets and budgets, we must have regard to a number of pieces of
evidence and we have asked the UKCCC for advice around this. We are
developing our emissions model, the Wales 2050 Calculator.

18.The UKCCC launched a Call for Evidence on Targets and Budgets between 6
July and 11 September. Stakeholder events will be held in Cardiff on 6 July and
Deganwy 13 July to inform this call. We have started working on the Delivery
Plan through establishing cross government working groups to develop the
policies and proposals needed to achieve the first carbon budget. Over the next
18 months we will be involving our stakeholders in the development of the
delivery plan.

19.1 am keen to act on Public Sector Decarbonisation. During a plenary debate on
27 June | set out the ambition for the Public Sector to become carbon neutral by
2030. Although the share of emissions in the Public Sector is small, they can
influence emission reduction in the wider sector as well as reducing costs. A Call
for Evidence is scheduled to be published asking stakeholders about the
opportunities and challenges around the ambition.

20.We continue to support Green Growth and by the end of this Government term
we expect to have nearly £70 million invested in public sector energy projects.
Our business case for Green Growth Wales identified the need for an investment
fund capitalised with a minimum of £50 million which can continue to recycle as
repayments are made. This gives us the opportunity to make around £650 million
in cash savings on energy and reduce emissions by 2.5 million tonnes of CO2
over the lifetime of the assets we fund.

21.Earlier this year | was able to announce two significant investments. £4.5 million
will enable Monmouthshire County Council to build the Oak Grove Solar Farm
which will generate the authority over £500,000 per annum and savings of nearly
50,000 tonnes of CO2 over its life. In addition a £3 million loan for Flintshire
County Council’s LED street lighting Programme enables the Authority annual
savings of £400,000 and a lifetime saving of over 25,000 tonnes of CO2.

22.1 believe a modern, efficient and reliable energy infrastructure is important for our
businesses and communities and | am committed to supporting the development
of new renewable energy generation. Renewable and low carbon electricity and
heat form an important element of Welsh Government’s approach to
decarbonisation.

23.1n terms of opportunities, this means supporting large energy investments in on-
shore renewables, marine and nuclear, including our two largest energy
investment projects, Wylfa Newydd and the proposed Swansea Bay Tidal
Lagoon.

24.Wylfa Newydd has been defined as a priority for this Government term. It will help
create high quality jobs as well as be important to the future of steel in Wales.
The UK Government has an important responsibility not to damage confidence
levels of key developers such as Horizon Nuclear Power and their Tier 1 supply
chain to invest in Wales. On 24 May, Horizon launched its third stage of pre-

Pack Page 16



application consultation on its updated plans for Wylfa Newydd. We provided a
full, cross-Government response to this comprehensive consultation, which
closed on 22 June.

25.The UK Government also needs to fully engage with us on the development of a
tidal lagoon energy industry in the UK as we have developed an extensive
knowledge base to support this industry - a recognised by the Hendry Review. |
recently wrote again to the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial
Strategy for an up-date on the UK Government’s response to Hendry and to
stress the importance of full engagement with us.

26.The UK Government has confirmed it will publish its response in due course,
although it has not committed to a timetable. We are finalising the draft Welsh
National Marine Plan for consultation in the coming months. We need to, of
course, reflect the UK Government’s position on tidal lagoons as part of that
consultation process.

27.We have provided Swansea Bay Tidal Lagoon with a £1.25 million commercial
loan. We work closely with the company to ensure Welsh companies derive the
maximum benefit possible.

28.We have also invested in the Skills Demand / Supply reports for the proposed
Swansea Bay lagoon development. This investment will help position Wales to
take advantage of the opportunities and become a world leader in this new
industry. We have engaged with key stakeholders, such as Wales’ Regional
Skills Partnerships, giving them with early access to the Labour Market
Intelligence reports.

29.We will set ambitious yet realistic targets for renewable energy, and we are
holding a workshop to engage stakeholders with the evidence which will inform
targets on 17 July. This is part of our work to develop an energy pathway to
support our decarbonisation commitments and a more prosperous Wales.

30.In support of this | have written again to the UK Government to emphasise the
need to support the most cost effective renewable technologies as part of their
energy support mechanisms. | have committed to exploring the Committee’s
recommendation on an energy supply company for Wales. We have held three
consultations events across Wales and will publish the outcome in due course.

31.0ur local renewable energy support service continues to increase small-scale
installations, with a focus on retaining the benefits in Wales. Fifteen projects have
been constructed, increasing community owned generation by over 400% to
9.3MW, up from 1.7 MW at the end of 2014. We continue to press UK
Government on the Contract for Difference financial regime as this currently does
not provide the required assistance Wales needs to meet its renewable energy
targets, including the lack of support for onshore wind and wave and tidal
technologies.

32.0ur work on energy innovation continues through Smart Living Wales. Progress

has been made on a number of projects including a feasibility study for using
mine water as an energy source for Bridgend Council’s heat scheme. A

Pack Page 17



sustainable fuel workshop has been organised to help City of Cardiff develop a
strategy addressing air quality and decarbonisation needs. Also, a successful
“Inside smart homes and workplaces” event held in March to inform the citizens’
perspective. To date £0.35 million of Welsh Government investment has helped
attract over £50 million of expertise helping two of the demonstrators in Anglesey
and Bridgend.

33.Other community programmes include our highly successful flagship Welsh
Government Warm Homes programme which has been designed to ensure
economic benefits for Wales in terms of employment and business opportunities.
All of the energy efficiency improvements installed under our schemes have been
delivered by Wales-based SMEs.

34.Between 2011 and 2016, we have invested over £217 million in Welsh
Government Warm Homes to improve the energy efficiency of over 39,000
homes of those on low incomes or living in the most deprived areas of Wales. |
expect to publish 2016-17 figures later this month.

35. Last year, the Nest scheme delivered estimated average energy bill savings of
over £400 per household. If these estimated savings are realised for every home
improved through Nest, it would equate to annual energy bill savings of over £9.5
million per year. Arbed 2 has also created more than 470 jobs and delivered
more than 60,000 hours of training in green technologies to existing and new
employees.

36.We also recently published the findings of research on the health impacts of
Nest. The research shows the Nest scheme is having a clear positive impact on
the health of recipients with a reduction in the use of the NHS by those receiving
energy efficiency measures through the scheme. These findings support our
decision to extend the eligibility criteria for our new Nest scheme to include
householders on low incomes who have a respiratory or circulatory condition.

37.We are making progress in tackling fuel poverty — despite the fact that some of
the levers for tackling fuel poverty are not devolved. Powers over Welfare Reform
and the regulation of the retail energy market rest with the UK Government.
Overall fuel poverty has reduced from 29% in 2012 to 23% in 2016. This is a
reduction of 6 percentage points in just four years.

38.We will also strengthen building regulations through our proposed Part L review
this year. This will look at how we can control insulation values and reduce
energy usage in homes.

39.In addition, we have been exploring opportunities to lever in more resources and
support from energy suppliers, Local Authorities, pension funds and others, to
accelerate investment across Wales to tackle fuel poverty and support our
decarbonisation ambitions. We are looking at all opportunities for innovation, both
in energy efficiency products and in financial models which can help support the
uptake of energy efficiency improvements amongst able-to-pay households, as
well as those on low incomes. | expect to be able to make an announcement on
my proposals in the autumn.

Pack Page 18



40.1 am committed to achieving a more circular economy in Wales and using the
earth’s natural resources far more efficiently. | plan to set out a route map for a
more resource efficient circular economy, building on our success in recycling.

41.With a recycling rate of 60%, Wales is far ahead of all other UK nations, and
within a few percentage points of being first in Europe. To put this in context, in
2015015 only two nations - Slovenia and Germany - exceeded 60% recycling.
Whilst three of our Local Authorities failed to meet the 58% statutory recycling
target, two of that three missed by just 1%. Provisional data now shows us the
Local Authority municipal recycling rate increased to 63% for the twelve months
ending December 2016.

42.We are currently reviewing the Wales Waste Strategy, Towards Zero Waste.
When we have completed the review we will consult on options in 2018.

43.We have also commenced preparation of the National Development Framework
(NDF). The NDF will ensure the planning system supports the delivery of the
Welsh Government’s key objectives; setting out the national infrastructure we will
need; how our regions should grow; and how the planning system nationally,
regionally and locally should be aligned to provide a joined-up framework
providing certainty and direction. Consultation on the main issues, options and
preferred strategy for the NDF is programmed for early 2018.

44.] can also reaffirm the commitment to review Planning Policy Wales to align it
with the goals of the Well-being of Future Generations Act. This review will
enable local planning authorities to formulate their own local planning policies in
line with the Future Generations Act and to make planning decisions which help
implement them. We are currently working the document and updating policy
where it is required. A consultation on the full document will take place in early
2018.

45.This financial year we will invest over £54 million (capital and revenue) to support
activities and schemes to reduce flood and coastal risk across Wales. We are
updating the National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Risk Management in Wales.
The updated strategy will clarify roles and responsibilities, particularly around the
coast, and further encourage natural flood measures and green engineering
schemes. We have committed to continue funding small-scale flood risk
management works, providing a simpler route for local authorities to apply for
funding for schemes up £100k.

46.This financial year we will provide £2 million for this vital grant. We are working
with local authorities on plans for a £150 million capital value investment in
coastal risk management with funding for construction starting from 2018-19. We
are reviewing business cases submitted by local authorities and will be
confirming projects to progress further shortly. We have encouraged the use of
hybrid or green engineering schemes to reduce flood risk, which has worked well
in places like Swansea, Pontarddulais, Colwyn Bay and Borth. The updated
National Strategy will further encourage wider catchment approaches such as
better rural/upland management to retain water and restoring functional
floodplains.

Pacgk Page 19



47.Tackling agricultural pollution is essential if we are to improve water quality in
Wales. Our 'Sustainable Management of Natural Resources’ consultation, which |
have already mentioned, considers the viability of new powers for the Welsh
Ministers to, via secondary legislation, make provision for basic measures in
relation to the sustainable management of natural resources. This includes
measures to address cumulative impacts of low risk agricultural activities. Our
Nitrate Vulnerable Zones (NVZs) consultation received a large number of
responses and | hope to release the summary of responses later this summer, to
be followed by my formal response.

48.In March | committed the final tranche, totalling £223 million, of the 2014-2020
Rural Development Programme to make full use of the Treasury guarantee on
funding to 2020. Since the launch of the RDP programme, we have made £787
million of investment available for the benefit of communities, farmers, foresters
and food businesses in Wales through the RDP 2014 - 2020. That is over 82% of
the Programme.

49.When the current modification is approved the allocation for the Programme will
be amended to £774.35 million of which £519.62 million is EU funding. Taking the
revised future Programme allocation into account gives a commitment value of
just over 100%. | recently agreed an indicative plan of future expression of
interest windows to commit the remaining programme. An indicative list of the
remaining windows to be opened is on the RDP part of the Welsh Government
website.

50.The European Maritime and Fisheries Fund 2014-2020 (EMFF) fully opened in
January 2017 and we have published detailed guidance notes. We have made
good progress with a robust pipeline of projects preparing and, in a number of
cases, having submitted applications. We are working closely with industry and
stakeholders to stimulate and support project development. Six applications,
requesting just over £600,000 in EMFF grant are currently in appraisal.

Healthy and active

51.1 am eager for more to be done across Wales, from primary production through to
manufacturing and food service, to develop and supply the market for healthy
food and drink products. This would have both health and economy benefits.

52.Two years on from Towards Sustainable Growth: An Action Plan for the Food
and Drink Industry growth has exceeded expectations at 17% to £6.1 billion in
2015 and already more than half way towards the 2020 of 30% growth target.

53.The sector generated over £337 million from exports in 2016 with over 72% to the
European Union, a significant increase of over 27% from the total of £264 million
exported in 2015.

54.Tackling the legacy of poor health outcomes clearly requires individuals to take
greater responsibility for their lifestyles, but is also about ensuring communities
live in an environment that does not cause ill health and which contains the
infrastructure that enables them to take steps to improve their wellbeing.

Pack Page 20



55.We are firmly committed to improving air quality across Wales. We are tackling
air pollution through Local Air Quality Management, industry regulation, the
planning regime, the promotion of active travel and encouragement of other local
measures associated with green space and trees. In increasing the resilience of
communities it is important to reduce the health burden of air pollution. Measures
to increase the uptake of low emission vehicles and rail electrification can all
contribute to this. | issued new policy guidance to Local Authorities on 15 June,
coinciding with Clean Air Day, to bring the local air quality management regime
into line with the ways of working in the Well-being of Future Generations
legislation. The Welsh Government will be issuing guidance to support health
professionals with key messages on supporting Local Authorities and
communicating to the public the risks of poor air quality. We will carry out an
awareness-raising campaign on air quality.

56.We are analysing the Wales-specific responses to the joint UK-wide consultation
on a new draft UK air quality plan. The consultation, which closed recently,
included a commitment by Welsh Government us to consult on the detail of a
Clean Air Zone framework for Wales. The UK plan needs to be published in its
final form by the end of July.

57.1 also want to ensure Wales has healthy productive animals, with a good quality
of life; that people trust and have confidence in the way food is produced; and
that public health is protected

58.The Wales Animal Health and Welfare Framework annual implementation plan
for 2017/18 is due for publication at the end of July. Supporting this work, the
Wales Animal Health and Welfare Framework Group is promoting involvement
and collaboration amongst stakeholders, covering the whole spectrum of animal
health and welfare issues.

59.The Welsh Government Contingency Plan for Exotic Animal Diseases which sets
out the procedures processes and structures to be used in an animal disease
outbreak is being reviewed to take account of lessons learned from the recent
avian influenza outbreak. The experience of this outbreak clearly demonstrates
the importance of robust contingency planning.

60. A core principle of the Wales Animal Health and Welfare Framework is
“Prevention is better than cure”. To embed this principle fully into ways of working
across the industry we are working in partnership with the Wales Animal Health
and Welfare Framework Group Welsh to consider active animal health planning.
This links in to our continued work to raise awareness of good biosecurity
practices. A small task and finish group, consisting of farmers and vets has been
established to take this forward.

61.We have worked closely with stakeholders to deliver the project to simplify the
current Six Day Standstill controls. The new arrangements for Quarantine Units
will reduce the complexity for farmers. The amended Disease Control Order is
scheduled to come into force on 11 September in order to avoid any adverse
Impact on the show season this year.

Pacgk Page 21



62.We have made significant progress over the last nine years towards our goal of a
TB free Wales. We must continue our work to tackle this disease to safeguard the
future of the industry and to protect public and animal health. On 20 June we
published two key documents which set the tone. Our overarching document sets
out our foundations, our core values and the key polices which will form the back
bone of our programme for many years to come, and the Delivery Plan contains
detailed measures and enhancements to be adopted on an all-Wales and
regional basis.

63. The delivery plan will be a living document which will be updated as and when
necessary, allowing the Programme to adapt to the changing situation. This agile
way of working allows us to be reactive to new and emerging information about
the disease picture and enables the swift inclusion of enhancements to reflect the
latest science and learning.

64.1n January | announced additional protection in Welsh waters for harbour
porpoise and seabirds. Three candidate Special Areas of Conservation (SACS)
for harbour porpoise were submitted to the EC as a package of five UK sites and
a new Special Protection Area for red throated diver and marine extensions to
two existing Marine Protected Areas (MPASs) for the protection of Manx
shearwater, Atlantic puffins and terns. With the six new marine designations we
now have 132 MPAs in Wales providing protection for a diverse range of habitats,
species and birds supporting the sustainable use of our seas.

65.We are looking to implement a flexible management scheme for the scallop
fishery in Cardigan Bay SAC and have set up a group made up of science,
industry and environmental groups. We are working with lawyers towards
developing new legislation.

Ambitious and learning

66. Work is continuing to bring the 2017 Agricultural Wages Order into force as soon
as possible. The new Order will represent an increase to the 2016 pay levels for
all categories and grades of agricultural workers. It is imperative that full and
proper consideration is given to the legality of all new Statutory Instruments.
Maintaining the Agricultural Minimum Wage regime and ensuring appropriate pay
and conditions for agricultural workers in Wales remains a Welsh Government
priority.

67.The Agricultural Advisory Panel which begun its work in June 2016 will be
instrumental in enhancing training and development opportunities within the
sector and combating any skills shortages. A key statutory function of the
independent Panel is to promote careers and skills development. The Panel’s
Sub-committee on Skills, Development and Training brings together experts from
within the industry and academia with the intention of identifying gaps, pressures
and priorities in terms of training and education and to develop a coordinated
approach to retaining and enhancing skills in agriculture.

68.In addition, our Farming Connect programme is already delivering significant

levels of support to the agricultural and forestry sectors in Wales to help improve
their knowledge and skills and ultimately their resilience and profitability.

Pack Page 22



69.The programme is now in the beginning of its second year. As of 20 June, 7,449
businesses and over 14,500 individuals had registered for the new programme.

Lesley Griffiths AM
Cabinet Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs
July 2017

Pagk Page 23



Agendacitentd, 1

1 Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru
| Elin Jones AM, Presiding Officer
 National Assembly for Wales

Committee Chairs

National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

11 July 2017

Dear Committee Chair
Implementation of the Wales Act 2017

As you will be aware, the Wales Act 2017 provides that the Secretary of State for
Wales must appoint, through regulations, a ‘principal appointed day’ on which the
new reserved powers model will come into force. The Act also provides that the
Secretary of State must consult me, as Llywydd, before making such regulations.

| enclose a letter from the Secretary of State setting out his intention to appoint 6
April 2018 as the principal appointed day. He also indicates that he intends to
commence most of the remaining provisions in the Wales Act at the same time.

You will note from the Secretary of State’s letter that he intends to write further in
relation to the implications for the Legislative Consent process as a result of the
two-year Parliamentary session. | will share this letter with you in due course.

| would be grateful if you could let me know by Friday 28 July whether your
committees have any comments to make on the Secretary of State’s proposals.

Yours sincerely

Elin Jones AM
Llywydd
Enc
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg / We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru National Assembly for Wales
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 TNA Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 TNA
Livwydd@cynulliad.cymru Liywydd@assemblywales
www.cynulliad.cymru v@adssﬁ?atgﬁ/\@qs

0300 200 7403 0300 200 7403



I 72& UK Government Rt Hon Alun Cairns MP
: Secretary of State for Wales
s Llywodraeth y DU Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru
Gwydyr House | Ty Gwydyr

London | Llundain
SW1A 2NP

1 Caspian Point | 1 Pwynt Caspian
Cardiff | Caerdydd
CF10 4DQ

www.gov.uk/wales www.gov.uk/cymru
Elin Jones AM

Presiding Officer
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay
CF99 1NA
T
Ref: 250SUB 17 [©" July 2017

!
Neos EL

| am writing regarding the implementation of the Wales Act 2017. The Act provides
for the Secretary of State to appoint, through regulations, a “principal appointed day”
(PAD) on which the new reserved powers model comes into force. The Act specifies
that | consult the Welsh Ministers and the Assembly's Presiding Officer before
making regulations appointing the PAD. | am therefore writing to seek your views on
my proposal to specify 6 April 2018 as the principal appointed day.

Three key factors have informed my proposed date. Firstly, the need to implement
the new reserved powers model of Welsh devolution as soon as practicable, to
provide a clearer settlement and a well-defined division between devolved and
reserved responsibilities. The lack of clarity that is a feature of the current Welsh
devolution settlement continues to hinder our administrations working together as
effectively as they might.

The 2017 Act requires the PAD to be at least four months after the regulations
appointing the date are made. Making these regulations this autumn would provide
Parliament, the National Assembly for Wales and both our governments with
sufficient notice to prepare for the new model.

Secondly, as you know the new devolved taxes - the Land Transaction Tax and
Landfill Disposals Tax - come on stream on 6 April 2018. Bringing the reserved
powers model into force on the same day would deliver a strong message that Welsh
devolution has come of age.

Thirdly, we need to be clear about the model of Welsh devolution which applies as
we prepare for our exit from the European Union. Implementing the reserved powers
model in April 2018 provides us with sufficient time to make the necessary
preparations before exit day.

Pack Page 25



| also propose to commence most of the remaining sections of the Wales Act 2017 in
the same order. These sections devolve further powers to the National Assembly and
the Welsh Ministers. The devolution of these powers is already reflected in the
reserved powers model and so it makes sense to bring these sections into force at
the same time.

The current session of Parliament will run until 2019, meaning the new reserved
powers model would be brought force mid-way through the session. Clearly this has
implications for any Legislative Consent Motions that may be required, and my
officials are working to assess the impact. | will write to you once this analysis is
completed. You will be aware that under Schedule 7 to the 2017 Act the current
conferred powers model would continue to apply to those Assembly Bills which have
passed Stage 1 by the PAD.

| would be grateful to receive your response by 4 September, enabling the
regulations to be drafted by early autumn. | am happy to share with you the
regulations in draft before they are laid.

| am writing in similar terms to the First Minister of Wales.

Alun Cairns MP
Secretary of State for Wales
Ysgrifennydd Gwladol Cymru

Pack Page 26



Agenda ltem 4.2

Ein cyf/Our ref:
Cyfoeth Eich cyf/Your ref:

Naturiol

Cymru Ebost/Email:
ceri.davies@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk

Eg;g[larlces Ffon/Phone: 03000 654248

Wales

Mike Hedges AM
Chair of the Climate Change, Environment and Rural Affairs Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Dear Mr Hedges,

| am writing in response to the recent session of the Climate Change, Environment and
Rural Affairs Committee with the Cabinet Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs,
Lesley Giriffiths, to inform the Committee’s inquiry in the management of MPAs in Wales.
Several references were made that relate to the work of NRW which it would be helpful to
clarify.

1. Wales MPA Management Steering Group and NRW'’s support for MPA
management in Wales. Questions were asked about the outcome of a consultation on an
area management approach for MPAs and NRW'’s funding of local Relevant Authority
Groups.

The Wales MPA Management Steering Group (MPAMSG), of which NRW is a member,
did favour a 7 management-area approach in response to a consultation on an area-based
approach to MPA management. It is suggested, for clarity, that this information needs to
be caveated with the further conclusions and intentions of the Steering Group, as stated in
the Cabinet’s Secretary’s recent letter to NRW and all MPA management authorities (8%
May 2017) which is that the 7 areas approach was concluded to be unaffordable, and also
that the new agreed focus and priority of the Steering Group has moved on to “providing
strategic support and guidance to management authorities to facilitate activity which has
greatest impact on the condition of MPAs, their features and network as a whole.”

NRW has also confirmed that our priority in terms of resource allocation is improving the
condition of the network of MPAs through effective management. Overall, we are clear
that the key mechanism for effective management of the MPA network is via the planning,
assessment and regulatory regime, and it is here that resource needs to be

focused. NRW has already provided a note to your Committee on this subject to improve
understanding of what constitutes MPA management activity.

NRW is also supportive of working collaboratively with partners to improve the
management of MPAs and actively does so via staff support and recent NRW grant-aided
projects, and partnership delivery. This is the final year of the NRW 3-year partnership
funding targeted at projects that were assessed through a competitive process. This was a
step change from the legacy bodies’ approach of core funding organisations to funding

Ty Cambria ¢ 29 Newport Road Cardiff CF24 0TP

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a'r Saesneg PaCk Page 27
Correspondence welcomed in Welsh and English



Cyfoeth
Naturiol
Cymru
Natural
Resources
Wales

specific outcomes on a project basis that align with NRW'’s priorities. We are currently
setting up a new commissioning approach for future funding of partnership projects.

Relevant Authority Groups and site officers are an additional mechanism for MPA
management that, in particular, can provide a liaison and awareness-raising role, rather
than the primary mechanisms for condition improvement, and there are clear examples of
good practice in this regard. The key issues in relation to MPA management is
recognising where the greatest impact on condition across the network is delivered, as set
out above, and targeting our resources appropriately.

2. The evidence base and monitoring the MPA network. Questions were also asked as
to whether NRW was adequately resourced for its MPA management and monitoring roles,
fulfilment of our statutory duties, and in relation to gaps in the evidence base.

Overall the marine environment is a technically challenging and resource intensive
environment to monitor and survey. As a result, our evidence base does have gaps, but
we also use modelling effectively to understand the distribution of habitats and species etc.

NRW has a variety of duties in relation to MPAs including statutory advice, certain
monitoring, regulation etc. As part of our role, NRW undertakes a variety of marine
monitoring on the extent and condition of MPA features. This focusses on supporting
statutory requirements for monitoring and reporting under the EU Habitats and Birds
Directives. NRW'’s marine monitoring programme is, however, currently a minimum service
and resources are challenging. We are, however, working with INCC to support the
development of a UK marine biodiversity monitoring programme prioritised on the basis of
risk. We will assess the funding requirements of this new programme with Welsh
Government once work concludes later this year.

Site Condition Reports are the tool that most partners, management authorities, and WG,
request from NRW to support effective MPA management decisions. This is a challenge
for NRW to resource as there is no statutory requirement to produce such reports or collect
the relevant monitoring information. Your Committee also took an interest in Site
Condition Reports and asked NRW about availability. To address the demand, NRW is in
the process of producing indicative condition assessments of all features on all European
marine sites, and results will be available later this year. We are also looking at options to
develop a sustainable ongoing process for site condition report production.

As referred to above, | re-enclose a note describing what constitutes management of
MPAs, which I hope will be informative.

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Pack Page 28
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 2 of 3



> Cyfoeth
' Naturiol
Cymru

Natural
Resources
Wales

If you have any queries in relation to the clarifications provided above, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

'

ey

Ceri Davies
Executive Director for Evidence, Policy and Permitting

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Pack Page 29
www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 3 of 3



g Cyfoeth Management of marine

< Naturiol )
Cymru protected areas Iin
Natural
Resources Wales
Wales

Briefing note: June 2017

Introduction

Effective management of marine protected areas (MPAS) is essential to achieve the
conservation objectives set for individual sites and to meet Government’s obligations to
secure an ecologically coherent and well managed network of MPAs. Effective
management of MPAs also helps to maximise the contribution the MPA network makes to
the health and resilience of, and the societal benefits from, the marine environment as a
whole.

Management of MPAs takes numerous forms, with some management activity applying to
individual sites, and other management to activities or uses across the network. Effective
application of planning and regulation is the primary mechanism for MPA management to
secure the conservation objectives of sites and wider benefits of the network, and prevent
negative impacts. Other forms of MPA management focus on unregulated activities, and
delivery of local site-specific management actions such as a code of conduct handed out
to marine users in Cardigan Bay Special Area of Conservation (SAC) or specified visitor
moorings in Skomer Marine Conservation Zone (MC2).

This briefing note provides some more details on MPA management activity in Wales.

Strategic planning
Strategic planning ultimately aims to guide development

to locations which maximise the use of available o
resources, whilst minimising adverse socio-economic Dypeiined
and environmental impacts, including those on MPAs. R

Examples of strategic plans that take account of Welsh
MPAs are the Welsh National Marine Plan, currently
being developed by Welsh Government, and plans
published by The Crown Estate in support of their
strategic seabed leasing programmes for renewable
energy and aggregate extraction.

UK Offshore Energy Strategic
Environmental Assessment

Formal development plans and programmes are
typically subject to Strategic Environmental Assessment
(SEA), which is the process of appraisal through which
environmental protection and sustainable development
are considered, and are factored into national and local
decisions regarding Government (and other) plans and
programmes.

Pack Page 30

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Page 1 of 6



The potential for a plan or programme to adversely affect MPAs designated under the EU
Habitats and Species and / or Bird’'s Directives will also be assessed through a plan level
Habitats Regulations Appraisal (HRA).

Regulation

Development projects in Welsh waters are subject to a range of regulatory regimes
including 'marine licensing' under the Marine & Coastal Access Act (2009). Marine
licences apply to certain activities proposed within Welsh waters that typically involve the
deposit of substances or objects into the sea or onto the sea bed, construction,
improvement or alteration works, and any form of dredging. Marine licensing is delivered
by Natural Resources Wales (NRW) on behalf of Welsh Ministers, and 65 licences were
granted for activities occurring within MPAs in Wales last year.

Advice is given to developers before activities occur and, depending on the location and
nature of a project, the potential impacts of proposed developments are assessed through
an Environmental Impact Assessment and / or a Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA)
before any development occurs. Many of these developments are innovative, novel ways
of using the sea and careful consideration of the effects they may have on our protected
habitats and species is needed. Depending on the outcome of these assessments,
mitigation and compensatory measures may be required before a development can be
approved.

A large range of activities are assessed this way including:

Offshore wind Coastal development Coastal defence

Aggregate extraction Tidal stream Cable laying

Pack Page 31

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Page 2 of 6



Case study: Adaptive Management - DeltaStream Tidal Energy project

Significant lessons were learnt through the consenting process for Tidal Energy
Limited’s (TEL) DeltaStream project in Ramsey Sound in managing risk and uncertainty
within acceptable limits and the role of a ‘deploy and monitor’ based approach,
implementing adaptive management as a way of dealing with uncertainty about
impacts.

Ramsey Sound, in which the device was to be installed, lies within Pembrokeshire
Marine Special Area of Conservation (SAC) which was designated to protected grey
seal and reef habitat among other features. Habitats Regulations and Environmental
Impact Assessments concluded that, provided certain conditions were adhered to, the
device would not adversely affect marine wildlife. These conditions were detailed within
the various licences and permits issued for the project.

A collaborative approach was taken between TEL, NRW and other relevant bodies in
the form on an Environmental Management Committee, which oversaw the
development of a Collision Risk and Adaptive Management Plan. This crucial
document detailed the measures to be taken to protect marine wildlife from adverse
effects and how these conditions of the various licences and permits would be met.

This project was ground breaking in this respect, and the important steps TEL and
DeltaStream made will inform the development of future proposals for commercial
scale tidal energy projects.

Other management action

Some other areas of MPA management focus on activities that are not regulated via the
routes described above; for example, recreational activities tend to be unregulated. There
are many examples of how unregulated activities are being actively managed in Wales to
avoid impacts on MPA features, whilst allowing for access to and enjoyment of our seas
and wildlife. Further details of the variety of MPA management work undertaken in Wales,
in addition to core management via planning and regulation, are provided here.

In 2016, NRW commenced work on its Marine Protected Area (MPA) Condition
Improvement Project (CIP) based on the outputs of the LIFE Natura 2000 Programme for
Wales (2012-2015). The overarching aim of the MPA CIP is to develop and deliver a
prioritise work programme focussing on actions that deliver maximum impact on the
condition (or maintenance of condition) of marine features across Wales’ Natura 2000
network.

Pack Page 32

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Page 3 of 6



The MPA CIP has identified five priority work areas and the list below provides examples
of the pressures and threats for which actions have been identified:

1. Access and recreation (e.g. damage to habitat features or disturbance of species
features);

Invasive species (e.g. marine non-natives)

Marine fisheries (e.g. potting and netting activities)

Pollution and waste (e.g. marine litter and diffuse water pollution)

Water management and issues (e.g. coastal squeeze)

abrwn

The chart below shows the number of actions identified under each priority work area and
delivery progress to date. Many of the “in progress” actions are being taken forward
through existing partnerships and some are being funded through NRW'’s competitive
grant fund or directly by Welsh Government. However, some of these actions further
funding is still required to complete delivery, and NRW and external partners are working
to develop proposals for external funding to enable this and the delivery of other prioritised
actions.

Mumber of actions
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80

Access &
Recreation

Inwvasive species

Marine fisheries

Priority work areas

Pollution & waste

Water mgmt &
issue

B In progress Identified Progress not yet assessed

Examples of the projects being delivered under the MPA CIP and a flavour of other
management activities being delivered for MPAs across Wales are provided overleaf.

Pack Page 33

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Page 4 of 6



Example of priority projects contributing to the MPA Condition Improvement Project

Cross-Wales case study: Assessing Welsh Fishing Activities project

Welsh Government and NRW are undertaking a
comprehensive project to assess the impacts of all
marine fisheries activities from licensed and registered
fishing vessels on protected features of European
Marine Sites in Wales. There are 525 assessments to
undertake which have been prioritised based on risk.
Welsh Government will use the assessments to consider
any management which may be required to address
potential impacts on a site-by-site or all-Wales basis.
The project’s outputs will be used to support the aims of
The EU Habitats Directives, The Environment Act and
The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act.

Multi-site case study: Litter projects in Pen Llyn a’r Sarnau & Cardigan Bay SACs

Two litter projects on two European Marine Sites are working collaboratively to deliver
results. The projects are working with businesses in two villages (Criccieth &

Llangrannog) to investigate the source of litter and try innovative ways to reduce litter
including:

Reducing packaging

Using biodegradable packaging

Not using straws

Providing a water fountain instead of
selling plastic bottles

Running a return your bottle scheme
e Providing information to customers

They are also working with other organisations to deliver more traditional marine litter
activities including beach cleans and awareness raising. The projects are funded under
the NRW competitive grant scheme and will be completed in March 2018.

Single site case study: Porthdinllaen Sea Grass project

B The aim of this project is to develop and implement
management options that will improve the condition
of the seagrass whilst allowing the existing use of
the bay to continue. The aim is to develop and
implement these management options in full
partnership with stakeholders. This project has
several strands:

Adaptation of existing moorings

Preparation of a mooring replacement plan for the inner harbour

Investigate the impact of vehicles on the intertidal seagrass and possible solutions
Determining the responsibility for the outer harbour

Review and disseminate information about the project

Stakeholder engagement and raising awareness

Pack Page 34

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk Page 5 of 6



Examples of other MPA management work being taken forward in Wales

Citizen science at Skomer

MCZ: showing how the site’s

scallop population is
increasing

Morfa Gwyllt lagoon project:
working to improve the
condition of the lagoon in
Pen LIyn a’r Sarnau SAC

Visitor moorings to protect
seagrass beds at Skomer
MCZ

Gwvnedd Marine Code

Llyn Marine Ecosystems
Project: working with
stakeholders to improve the
marine environment of the

Bait digging code of conduct
to protect features in
Pembrokeshire Marine SAC

Gwynedd and Ceredigion
Marine Codes to protect
dolphins in Pen Llyn a’r

Sarnau SAC, Cardigan Bay

SAC and surrounding areas LIyn Penisula

by

Recreational Boating
in the Severn Estuary
Consultation Report

Dolphin watch: assessing
impacts of recreational
boating on dolphin
behaviour in Pen Llyn a’r
Sarnau SA

Assessment of recreational
boating at the Severn
Estuary EMS.

Skomer MCZ team raising
awareness of the sites
boating zone.

Pack Page 35
Page 6 of 6

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk


http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjx9ayD_qDSAhWqJcAKHW9SAGMQjRwIBw&url=http://www.pembrokeshiremarinesac.org.uk/english/special/bait_digging.html&bvm=bv.147448319,d.ZGg&psig=AFQjCNFVOUSPUBPNaGDVMwFIk3gJuLi2iQ&ust=1487759452719588

Ag en d a Ite m 6 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 36



Ag en d a Ite m 9 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 40



	Agenda
	3 General scrutiny of the Cabinet Secretary for Environment and Rural Affairs
	Written evidence from Welsh Government

	4.1 Letter from the Llywydd regarding the implementation of the Wales Act 2017
	4.2 Letter from Natural Resources Wales regarding Marine Protect Areas
	6 Discussion of response to letter from the Llywydd regarding the implementation of the Wales Act 2017
	9 Discussion of Committee's Forward Work Programme

